VOTE FOR THE PARTY OF YOUR CLASS

MONTANA NEWS

BOLISH THE CAP. ITALIST SYSTEM

VOL. VI.

State Historical Library

### HELENA, MONTANA, THURSDAY, SEPT. 10, 1908.

OWNED AND PUBLISHED BY THE SOCIALIST PARTY OF MONTANA

NO. 45.

# question made Mr. Stokes smile, yet **Amendments** for it was a grave smile and he was very **State Constitution**

Changes Made by the Convention --- They Should Be Carefully Studied by Every Member of the Party Before Voting the Referendum.

Article I, section 2, amended to read: | membership, after due notice, shall | posed by such locals to a referendum Sec. 2. Twenty per cent of the forfeit its charter. state committee shall constitute a quorum to transact business.

Section 3 amended to read: State committee shall meet in reglar session annually; in convention years three days before the convention.

Section 4 amended to read:

The revenue of the state organization shall be derived from sale of due stamps to the locals at the rate of 25 cents per stamp per member per month.

Article II., section 1 amended to read:

"And make reports to state conventions."

Article III., section 1, amended to read:

"There shall be state cabinet composed of three members. They shall be elected by the state committee at its annual session from the party membership. If any member of the cabinet shall be absent for two consecutive meetings his office shall be declared vacant and the state secretary shall call for nominations from state committee to fill the office."

Section 2 amended to read:

The state cabinet shall meet one in three months and at the call of the chairman of the cabinet, it shall supervise and direct the work of the state secretary and business manager and editor of the official state paper. Section 4 amended to read:

Any member of the state commit tee may require the state secretary to submit to the vote of the whole state committee questions as to the removal of any member or members of the cabinet or the state secretary, also for its consideration any part of the work of the state secretary or the cabinet, or any business belonging to the state committee.

Article IV., section 1, amended to read:

The nomination for the office of state secretary shall be made in open convention, such nomination to be

Sec. 6. Every working class member of the socialist party of Montana should be a member of some labor

union, if one exists in the territory in which he resides. The following articles have been added:

ARTICLE VII-CONVENTIONS. Section 1. All calls for conventions shall be sent out thirty days previous

to date of convention. Sec. 2. The regular state convention of the party shall be held in all years in which state conventions are

held. Sec. 3. Special conventions of the party may be held at any time if decided upon by a general vote of the party membership.

Sec. 4. The dates and places of holding such regular or special conventions shall be fixed by the state committee.

Sec. 5. The basis of representation in any state convention shall be by locals, each local being entitled to one delegate-at-large and one additional delegate for each ten members in

good standing, provided, however, that no delegate shall be considered eligible unless he has beer a member of the local from which the credential is presented, for a period of one year previous to date of convention. This shall not apply to districts where the party has not been organized for one or two years previous to the date of nomination, but in all cases candidates must be active members of the local

Sec. 6. Railroad fare to state nom inating and special conventions shall be paid from the state treasury, the money to be raised by special assessment if necessary.

Sec. 7. While in session the state convention of the socliaist party of Montana shall be the supreme power of the state and shall be qualified to handle any and all business belonging to the party, subject to a referendum f the party membership

vote of the membership of the state. Sec. 2. The state committee or state

cabinet shall have the privilege to propose amendments. -Prepared and submitted by the State Secretary.

COAL MINERS' CONVENTION.

The coal miners of District 22, including Wyoming and Montana, have been holding their annual convention

in Helena during the last week, and at present they are in conference with the coal operators.

The methods employed by the coal miners in their labor operations argue well for the growing power of the working class to manage their own affairs. Their reports are accurate and systematic, committee work thorough and effective, plans are patient and painstaking. When the socialist party labors to do its work as effi-

ciently as the unions are doing theirs it will get immediate and astonishing results.

The convention made several tenta tive jumps at political action. But these jumps are mostly in the line of the "good man" candidate. For instance, one resolution deals with the election of state mine inspectors by a direct vote of the mine workers, and pledges the mine workers to support for legislative officers "such candidates as will pledge themselves to support such a measure, and any other measure as would serve to protect the lives of the men employed in the mine. and using all influence to defeat any candidates that are opposed to such

demands." There is no doubt that they will find plenty of candidates who will "pledge themselves" (before election) to support such a measure. But the American workingman religiously avoids class lines in his politics, and goes to the slaughter every year on "pledges" that he has no means of enforcing.

Labor is slowly advancing to a planof greater solidarity along industrial

ures in the state, and of the laws of

One of the greatest evidences that

unionism will never solve the working

man problem is found in the introduc-

tion by the miners of the proviso that

a man making application for intia-

tion in the union must furnish satis-

factory evidence of having had one

pay a fee of \$10 assessed against non-

Driven by the necessity of protect-

ing themselves in job the coal miner

as workers in other crafts aims to

make a close corporation of his craft.

to keep out competitors. But the un-

employed problem stares us in the

face, and only socialism can answer

A resolution was also adopted en-

dorsing the bill for postal savings

A CHAT WITH A MILLIONAIRE

SOCIALIST

James Phelps Stokes, millionaire

socialist who visited Helena this week,

is very evidently sincere. At least,

that is the impression he made upon

a representative of The Lookout in a

work and the principles of the cult.

"You are understood to be million-

practical miners.

banks.

the state relating to coal mines."

lines, as instance one resolution: "We Mr. Phelps returned. Further discussion revealed believe the best interests of this organization would be advanced by a more complete interchange of transunions. a transfer of cards between the coal miners and the quartz miners.

eager to make reply. The socialistic Mr. Phelps of the plutocratis class is a winning personality. He smiles readily and sweetly and his statements of the principles of

socialism are made with conviction and enthusiasm. He is an exceptionally tall young man, something over thirty years of age; he is built on the toothpick plan, and his face is of the delicate type, slender-featured and very dark, with blue eyes that contrast oddly with the very dark skin and make the latter look rather inky. He is a true type of the Americanized Anglo-Saxon, and shows the New Yorker in his speech.

The Lookout man explained that he did not intend to be impertinent or offensive, but was anxious as to the answer Mr. Stokes would make to the question. The explanation was unnecessary; plainly Mr. Stokes had heard the question before, and he was primed with a fully detailed reply. Said he:

"My reason for not dividing up my unearned income is because it seems to me more just and proper to hand over the entire income to the socialist cause. Every dollar of rents, interests

or profits I receive is expended upon the socialistic propaganda, for publications, campaign expenses, traveling and hotel expenditures, and to aid in holding meetings where the funds of the local organization are insufficient to defray the expenses.

"Please make another paragraph of this. Every dollar of my personal expenses is paid from earnings from work done by myself.

"I feel that the unearned income l received was produced not by me but by the working class of America, and I feel that this class has a better right to it than I. Since it is impossible to hunt each and every one of the workhis ticket. ers who have contributed to this unearned income, I feel that the most effective way to return it is to devote It to the socialistic propaganda, which

aims to make it possible for futur: workers to retain every dollar they produce and not hand any of their product over to non-productive capitalists ' "But why not turn it back to the

particular workers who produce it?" "That is impossible. For instance have some income from rent of office buildings in New York, occupied by banks, railroad offices, mining offices and offices of other concerns whose industries are numerous and scattered throughout the country. It seems to me impossible to discover the individual workers who produced it,"

Mr. Phelps thinks his present acceptance of this income, and the use to fer cards between different labor or- which he applies it, is more helpful to is one of the most successful and ganizations, both trade and industrial humanity than would be a course in which he might refuse to accept the It will be remembered that the income, or dispose of the income-Western Federation of Miners at its bearing property and withdraw the recent convention took measures for proceeds from interest-bearing uses, or spend the income otherwise. He devoted many years to charitable and

# CANDIDATES OF THE SOCIALIST PARTY OF MONTANA Men and Women Devoted to a Revolutionary Movement That Commend the Pride and

**Respect of All Voters.** 

The Montana socialist party has cialist for many years, although a placed a state ticket in the field that it may well be proud of. Rev. L. J. Duncan, who heads the ticket as candidate for congress, is well known by name to all the socialists of Montana. and personally known over a large portion of the state where he has done propaganda work for the party. His speeches have universally given satisfaction. He is an able and scholarly man who has unequivocally taken his stand on the side of the working class and the socialist movement. He is pastor of the Unitarian church of Butte, a position he has held for several years, and is much beloved by his congregation.

Harry Hazleton, the candidate for governor, is a man well known to the older socialists of Montana, as a number of years ago he used to be an active propagandist, making speeches in various parts of the state. His business affairs of late years have interferred with his socialist activity. He s one of the partners in a flourishing tombstone business, established in five of the largest cities of Montana. He is a generous contributor to the party, and has been one of the heaviest supporters of the Montana News. He is a man well respected all over the state outside of the socialist party, and will probably run considerably ahead of

Rev. F. L. Buzzell, candidate for lieutenant governor, needs no introduction to socialist voters. He has been a Methodist minister well-beloved and respected throughout northern Montana, where he has held charge for many years. He left his church and surrendered his parchments that he might be free to devote himself to the social regeneration that he saw in the social revolution that was macrhing on before him. He took up a farm at Conrad, built a bungalow on it with his own hands, and has got results in his crops, trees, vegetables, etc., that are a wonder in that part of the country. Comrade Buzzell's family, consisting of a wife and four girls, are in entire sympathy with his socialist convictions, and the eldest girl, Esther, is training to be a socialist speaker.

Japs and Chinamen alike are out.

standing shoulder to shoulder with

their Caucassian brothers in the strug-

gle against the efforts of the land

grabbing, coal stealing Union Pacific

to reduce the workers to lower econ-

For ten years of glorious republican

want the whole hog for themselves.

The prospects are that the strike

northwest. The operators of Mon-

comparatively young man, has defeated T. J. Walsh in a number of important cases, and if he were elected to the supreme bench of Montana workingmen would have an official to be proud of.

A. T. Harvey, candidate for secretary of state, is a rising young man in the socialist movement. He is one of that brilliant and intelligent bunch of socialists in Fergus county that have been the pride of Montana. He is well posted on the movement and was one of our most capable delegates at the national convention. He would honor any position to which the socialists might elect him.

John Powers of Billings, candidate for state treasurer, is well known over the state from his long service as secretary of Local Billings. He is marked for his accuracy, neatness and care in keeping accounts and making reports, his results in this line being unquestionably the best in the state.

The candidate for attorney general is C. H. Parr, another Butte socialist attorney. Comrade Parr has been a member of the party for many years and is a man that every member of the party may take pride in voting for. Paul H. Castle, candidate for auditor, is another preacher that has espoused the cause of socliism. He is pastor of the Christian church at Hamilton, and is fearless in his advocacy of the proletarian revolution.

The candidate for superintendent of public instruction is Miss Etta Lyons, a young teacher at Fridley. She comes from a large family of revolters, has very positive ideas on the inequities of the present system, was a delegate to the convention, and well able to fulfil her duties should she be elected.

A. D. Peugh, nominee for the long term railroad commissionership, has been a railroad man thirty years, most of his service in the freight division.

Jesse Gilchrist, nominee for the four-year term, is in the contracting and building business at Billings, and is manager for the building trades organization there.

Joe Billings, the short-term nomince, is a well-known resident of Flathead county.

sent to a referendum of the party membership. The present incumbent of said office shall hold office until his successor is duly elected by said referendum. His term of office shall be ner: concurrent with that of the state committee. The state secretary shall be subject to removal by a two-third vote call upon the locals for nominations. of said committee.

Section 4 amended to read:

The state secretary shall be in possession of and responsible for all funds. He shall keep correct accounts of all money received and paid out by him, and shall at times have his books open to inspection of any member of the cabinet or member of the state party. He shall be placed under bonds, the amount to be fixed by the state committee. His term bond shall be paid for out of the state funds.

Article V. stricken out. Article VI. amended to read:

Section 1. No person shall hold local in the place in which he resides.

Sec. 2. No person shall be admitted while he holds an elective or appointive office under a capitalist party. Sec. 3. Any member of the socialist party who has been an officeholder under a capitalist party, shall, before being eligible to a nomination from the party, serve the party in the ranks his length of membership in the party.

Sec. 4. No member shall be eligible as a candidate for any state office who has not been a member of the socialist party in good standing for two years previous to his nomination, and no member shall be eligible as a candidate for any county or minor office who has not been a member of the socialist party in good standing for one year previous to his nomination. This shall not apply to districts where the party has not been organized one or two years previous to the date of nomination, but in all cases candidates must be active members of the local.

Sec. 5. No person can retain membership in any socialist local in the state of Montana who is the member of any alliance, organization or association whose principles are antagonistic to the interests of workingmen,

ARTICLE VIII-NOMINATIONS Section 1. Nominations for offices shall be made in the following man-

#### **County Offices**

March 1 the state secretary shall Nominations shall remain open for four weeks before being put to a ref-

erendum. The names receiving a majority of the votes cast shall be the nominees for the convention. Should no candidate for any particular office receive a majority of votes on the first ballot, the two receiving the highest votes shall be again submitted to a referendum in the same manner as before and the one receiving a majority of the votes cast shall be the nominee for the convention.

May 1 the chairman of the county committee, where organized, shall call upon the locals for nominations. Nominations shall remain open for membership in a local other than the three weeks before being put to a referendum. The names receiving a majority of the votes cast shall be the as a member of the socialist party nominees for the convention. Should no candidate for a particular office receive a majority of votes on the first ballot, the two receiving the highest number of votes shall be again submitted to a referendum in the same manner as before and the one receiving a majority of the votes cast shall one previous election, regardless of be the nominee for the convention. Sec. 2. In unorganized counties nominations shall be made by mass convention.

> Sec. 4. All members nominated for office by the socialist party, shall, upon accepting the nomination, place their undated resignation, signed and witnessed, in the hands of the local. that. county or state committee, to be accepted when ordered by a majority vote of the party membership of the district which he shall be elected to

#### represent. ARTICLE IX—HEADQUARTERS

Section 1. The seat of headquar ters shall be subject to removal by referendum vote at any time provided the same is called for by three or more locals.

#### ARTICLE X-AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Upon the application of and any local retaining such person in tary shall submit any amendment pro- vide your money with the poor?" This church.

The convention also asks for a state philanthropic work in the slums of mining board appointed by the gov-New York that convinced him such ernor who shall be examiners to pass endeavor is ineffective in producing a upon "the practical and technical cure for the evils which the poorest and most unfortunate workers of the qualifications and personal fitness of men seeking places as state inspectors world suffer. So he turned from that of mines. The qualifications demanded are "that they shall submit to and pass an examination as to their practhere found it and therefore is using tical and technical knowledge of mine his money in the cause.

Having disposed of Mr. Phelps' perengineering and applicances; of the sonal relations to socialism, as affectproper development and operations of ed by his character as a millionaire, coal mines, of ventilation in mines, of the nature and property of mine the conversation turned to the general gases, of the geology of the coal meassubject.

> "Tell me how socialism is to be applied by laws passed by the states or the United States."

"It would take a long essay and more time that I have to spare," Mr. Phelps replied. But he went into the subject to some extent, and spent half an hour endeavoring to make the newspaperman understand some of year's experience within the mines or his views on that topic.--Montana Lookout.

> are making a strenous and determined effort to suppress the great writ- ing the panic of the Grover Cleveland er's teachings. His book on "The regime, and it was not until a year ago, Four Gospels" has been confiscated after a hard struggle on the part of by the governor of Moscow, whilst the St. Petersburg authorities have their organization that an increase of refused to allow the formation of a wages were secured. Thus at the beliterary "Tolstoy society" under the ginning of the panic of 1907 the coal pretext that a permission to use his miners received a taste of the glorious name must be obtained from Tolstoy prosperity that causes our land to himself. The countess Sophie Tolstoy sent a wire saying that her husband would not mind the use of his with receiving ten years all the conname. The authorities, however, re- tents of the full dinner pail, the big

year of dividing up a little of glorious The university of Kasan has elected very pleasant chat upon his socialistic Tolstoy as honorary member, but the prosperity with their wage slaves, ministry of education refuses to sanction the election on the ground that three or more locals the state secre- aire, Mr. Stokes. Why don't you di- the count was excommulcated by the will extend and involve the entire

J. F. Mabie, Hiram Platt and Her-H. L. Maury of Butte, candidate for associate justice of the supreme court, man Schnick, candidates for presiablest lawyers in the state of Mon- ent in the socialist party activities. tana, being attorney for eleven different corporations. He has been a so- has run with Debs.

dential electors, are all three promin-Mabie says this is the third time he

## INDUSTRIAL CONDITIONS BEHIND **COAL STRIKE**

The coal miners in Wyoming ceased | tana and the miners are in joint conwork on September 1 in an effort to ference this week trying to agree on resist a reduction of wages varying a scale for the ensuing year, to take to socialism, hoping to find the cure in from 10 to 25 cents a day. The Union effect when the present scale expiresthe latter, and convinced that he has Pacific railway led the fight in the September 30.

ranks of the operators for the reduc-The coal miners of Washington are tion in wages. The miners did not ask working under protest until October for an increase in wages, but only for 1, until the results of the Montana. the same scale and conditions that exconference will be made known. If: isted for the past year. the Montana miners strike then Washington miners throw down their picks-The strike is general in Wyoming except for a few independent mines, also. The indications at present are which were willing to sign the scale that the railroads are going to attempt that existed during last year. to reduce the wages of the miners. The Union Pacific has commenced the All the miners answered the strike trouble and if the utterances of Presicall and every mine is tied up tighter than a drum. No scab being at work;

dent Elliot of the Northern Pacific railway are worth anything, then the Northern Pacific railway is going to be as aggressive as the Harriman road to cut wages. The Great Northern and Milwaukee are in line with President. Elliot's policy. For years Jim Hill has been complaining of the high wages coal miners receive, although wages for miners are lower today than they were twenty years ago.

The Northern Pacific railway is prepared for trouble, thousands of tons of coal being stored along the right of way, extending from Jamestown, N. D., west. It is said that the Northern-Pacific alone has 150,000 tons of coal stored in Montana.

The present trouble will be the means of bringing the miners into closer organization. At present each state has a scale of its own and the operators and miners of each state meet annually in joint conference. It is expected that after this there will be an interstate conference instead of a state conference, and when an agreement is reached it will mean for all the northwest states, and when a strike takes place it will mean a strike

(Continued on Page 2, Column 4)

the United Mine Workers to perfect flow with milk and honey for the ben-'fit of the corporations. Not content coal combines of Wyoming after one main obdurate.

#### omic conditions. BOYCOTTING TOLSTOY. The Russian government fear to arrest Tolstoy, apparently, but they prosperity the miners of Wyoming received the same wages as existed dur-



COURT.

View writes: "As I seem too busy

they have a grievance the pit committee takes it up with the bosses, just

IDAHO. The county convention of the so cialist party of Canyon county, Idaho, met at Middleton, August 29, and placed in nomination the following: State senator-Henry Reimers, Payette.

" H. L. MAURY, Butte.

SECRETARY OF STATE. A. T. HARVEY, Lewistown.

STATE TREASURER. - JOHN POWERS, Billings.

ATTORNEY GENERAL. C. H. PARR, Butte.

STATE AUDITOR. PAUL H. CASTLE, Hamilton.

SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC IN-STRUCTION. ETTA LYONS, Fridley

RAILROAD COMMISSIONERS. Six-Year Term-A. D. PEUGH, Edvingston.

Four-Year Term-JESSE F. GIL-CHREST. Billings.

Two-Year Term-JOE BILLINGS. Flathcad County.

#### <sup>†</sup> PROMPT ACTION NEEDED.

The dilatory policy pursued by the Montana party and its officials in regard to its business affairs has come to the verge of a disastrous culmination right in the midst of the campaign when we are in need of our strongest work. It was suicidal in the state of affairs the Montana party the last minute, and everything possible was done by the editor of this paper and a number of the party most finterested to have an early convention, on the Fourth of July, but without avail. The campaign should be in the latest. As it is now there is considerable confusion ahead. of us. The to consider ways and means for conducting the campaign, and the welfare are the thickest." of the party, looked into none of the affairs, did not even ascertain the membership of the party, number paying dues, number of locals, the resources and obligations of the party, or any matters that it is the business of a class-conscious organization of the working class to thoroughly take -charge of and supervise. The party has no opportunity to adjust its afsight as yet and the state committee was supposed to elect the cabinet.

The minutes of the convention were late in coming in and the state secre-

can see just where the the crisis donations go.

The party ought to remember that the greatest sacrifices are being made by those doing the immediate work. A feeling of confidence and good, earnest co-operation now will be pro-

ductive of splendid results. We have a consignment of stock be here in a few days, and on which we must pay \$60 to get it from the

would give us a most substantial boost and enable us to fill our job orders. Let us try again, comrades. Take

breath again and make another big help. This is the bone and sinew of the revolution. These struggles for lution itself.

Go out and get subs. If you could ringing slogans: just take \$5 worth of cards now, how it would help. The News deals with your local

fight. It belongs to every member of the party in Montana. The local press is the hope of the

future for the socialist party. We must not fail now when we have gone so far, and the new management says it shall not fail.

Mable and Burgess have been doing team work, and Mabie went on ahead was in to put off the convention till of Burgess in Carbon county and writes that he expects to swing back on the Bear Creek branch after him. He says they hold a meeting at Laurel Saturday, September 19, which lets them into Billings on the 20th. He writes: "There are a couple of hunfull swing on the 1st of September at dred slaves working at Laurel and I could not find a socialist among them. It is very pleasant to go into some convention refused to take any action place where there is a bunch of comwhatever on practical lines, refused rades to meet you, but the place that needs the work is where the heathen

Dear Comrade: Enclosed please my report for my trip through Idaho and Montana. I feel that it is a pretty good showing financially since I traveled 1,750 miles, 1,500 miles by railroad and the rest by stage and boat. Nineteen meetings were held in places where there was no local and four where there had never been a fairs. There is no state committee in speaker before. The balance leaves me \$2 per day and my expenses paid. The total receipts were \$159.97, total expenses \$80.15, balance \$79.82. T. E. LATIMER.

hands, and we trust that considerate attention will be paid to the above suggestions.

10. Last and greatest! Have a goodly supply of telling socialist literature for sale, and at the close of meetings get it into the hands of nonsocialists in exchange for coin, to carry on our educational warfare for needed for immediate work that will the emancipation of the working class. Distribute at least our national platform and constitutions, party papers, freight house. Direct help on this freely. Read our membership pledge -calling attention to the class strug-

gle plank, or application for membership blank, and extend an invitation to those who believe in socialist fundamentals to join the party of their class. Show them that it is the workworking class expression are the revo- lingman's fight we are waging, and on every occasion possible sound our

> "Workers of all countries unite! You have nothing to lose but your chains! You have a world to gain!

"To every worker the full product of his labor." D. BURGESS.

Subscribe for the Chicago Daily Socialist for three months and get the campaign and election news. 527 W. Broadway, Butte, Mont.

Application for charter in from Clancy with twelve names, mostly machinists. Comrade Burgess organized the local. J. E. Butler is secretary.

Mrs. Hugh Gregg of Pompey's Pillar, Mont., renews her sub and says she could not get along without the News. She says she wishes she could help the cause more, and that all she can do is to talk to the tramps that come there to ask for something to eat.

Surely, Castro must be "spanked. He has committed the high crime of refusing to permit his country to be exploited at will by the asphalt trusts and financial gangs of the United States and Europe. What does Venezuela exist for, if not to enrich the capitalists of the stronger nations?-Daily Call.

Five half-yearly sub cards \$1.00. Every comrade in Montana should send for a dollar's worth and boom the local socialist campaign to the pose of nominating officers for the utmost. Nothing will do this like a local press to handle the local situation.

to help in the work as I would like to do, I think it about time I was helping some financially, so I will enclose a \$10 check."

Simpkins of Mountain Home writes: "Burgess spoke in park to about 50 persons. Most of town away to circus at Boise. Made one of the best presentations of socialism so far here. The effect is as great as any two speakers previously."

The state central committee has at last succeeded in electing a state executive committee, as follows: A. W. Judd, Emmett; John Cheoweth, Middleton: L. E. Workman, South Boise: James Smith, St. Anthony; T. J. Coonrod, exofficio.

Comrade Hirst, Glenns Ferry, writes: "Comrade Burgess' lecture came off on schedule time. It was a very good one, too. Those present were very orderly and attentive and did some profitable thinking. At any

rate, we have added three new members to local since."

Comrade Untermann writes: "Have just returned from our county convention. Stites and a trip in the Clearwater region. If all Idaho were as well organized as the Clearwater we would not only scare the old parties, but carry the state."

Comrade Ben Jansen writes: "As will be in a fairly good shape after this election to carry on a campaign.'

Comrades of Sand Point to the number of eleven met and renewed their charter August 21, hired the Eagle hall and expect to meet each Sunday at 2 p. m. They have a fine hall and will likely have a membership of 50 to 75 in a short time. They have a few staunch and never tiring workers, besides a very fine field for work. The socialists of Bonner county, Idaho, will hold a mass convention in Sand Point September 5, 1908, for the pur-

county. Yours fraternally. M. C. ZORNER,

Elmer, Idaho.

the same as they would take the grievance of a white man. The Jap and Chinaman meet in the same union meeting as the whites. The Japs have the constitution and by-laws of the union translated and printed in their own language and are as well posted on the laws of the union as the rest

of the workers.

There is a great inspiration in the present conflict when one views it from a civilized viewpoint. Commerce has put man against man, nation against nation, race against race. Religion has caused men to spring at each others throats and made rivers flow with blood. But organized labor. the grandest and noblest of all, bring men together, knowing no nationality, no race, no creed, solving the problems of the race in a way that they can only be solved, economically. For the solidarity of the workers the Jap. Chinaman and Caucassian

stand pat in Wyoming.

STATE HEADQUARTERS, SOCIAL-IST PARTY, EMMETT, IDAHO. State executive committee held a meeting at Emmett, August 11, 1908. Comrade Judd was elected chairman. Coonrod ex-officio secretary. Comrades Workman, Judd and Coonrod present.

The minutes of state convention was read and motion that the "Trustees Printing Co. proposition" be postponed until after election. Adopted.

The salary of state secretary-treasurer be increased to \$25 per month beginning with Aug. 1, 1908. Adopted. Motion that a flat rate of \$5 be charged for dates of Comrades Unter- the bare bread and rice subsistence mann and Barton to help meet expenses of tours. Adopted.

Motion that copies of national platform be ordered shipped direct to local secretaries for distribution at meetings and other times and places and be paid for from state treasury. Adopted.

Motion that Judd and Coonrod be empowered to issue charters to locals and red cards to members-at-large between sessions. Adopted.

Motion that tours for Untermaann and Barton be arranged by Judd and Coonrod. Adopted.

Motion that we meet at Boise, 232 Sonna block, September 11, at 3 o'clock p. m., for next session of committee. Adopted.

THOMAS J. COONROD, Secretary.

Representatives-W. H. Hamilton, Caldwell; Claus J. Lundt, Payette; A. L. Chenewth, Middleton.

County commissioners-First district, H. M. Whitney, Caldwell; second district, Wm. S. Elrod, Middleton; third district, Julius Mielks, Payette.

Sheriff-Samuel Winchester, Caldwell.

Treasurer-Mrs. Minerva Peery, Emmett.

Probte judge-R. D. McKee, Nampa. Assessor-Frank D. Fouch, Parma. Coroner-John J. Jarvis, Middleton. Surveyor-Wm. E. Snodgrass, Middleton.

Attorney-Frank P. Kipp, Caldwell.

Subscribe for the Chicago Daily Socialist. One year \$3, six months \$1.50, three months 75 cents. A. B. Clinch, 527 W. Broadway, Butte, Mont.

#### CHINESE TRADE UNIONS.

Here othodox trade unionism of the "Gompers and Mitchell" emasculated type has surely attained its climax, going beyond its cringing American contemporary, and far more entitled to respect. Going beyond it luasmuch as the Chinese trade unions win an immensely greater proportion of strikes; more entitled to respect, because with an immeasurably less opportunity to attain what is called education, 'hovering chronically around line, with no funds generally, they have never arrived at the despicable summit of impotism of endorsing the "community of interests of capital and labor." Whenever the miserable existence in which they drag out their wretched bestial lives is threatened by a more than usual cut in wages, they rise and strike as one man. Scabbing is practically unknown. The guilds and unions date back to time immemorial. And yet what have they achieved? The right to live in dogkennels; to live on mouldy rice, which infects them with the dreaded beriberi, and horse feed.

Trades unions and socialist organizations of South Africa have decided to take political action along British lines.

county board did not allow us any representatives on election board, I am preparing to have watchers in every polling place in county. If the comrades of Nez Perce county will come to my help a little with funds we



Just distribute it right and you won't islative ticket?" Result was 1,070 yes

fight for justice and liband 310 no. The unions followed vith vicious charges.

In answer to her queries Tommy

'plain sailing.' '

"view-with-alarm" spirt and was filled

by the curious crowd of children.

honesty, it will enable him to appear

have to fight for justice and lib-	and 310 no. The unions followed up	with vicious charges.		nonesty, it will enable min to appear	Where Lewis Will Speak.
erty.	their action by appointing a commit-		told his story about wearing the but-	as "an injured innocent" and befog the issue and help him to smother, to	The following cities will be visited
	tee to work with the socialist party	SOCIALIST NOTES FROM ABROAD.		an extent, the growing socialist senti-	on the dates given:
As I gazed on the pale wan faces, my	committee to elect the ticket.	A new socialist daily, the Cry of the	had made over it.		September 3-10, Denver; 12-13,
God, will it ever be thus,	and the second s	People, has appeared in Turin. There	they do you wear to and the	ment within the ranks of trade union-	Deadwood; 14-15, Edgemont; 16-17,
That labor has to starve to death be-	The comrades of New Mexico in the	are now six socialist dailies in Italy,	teacher.	ists.	Billings; 18-19, Great Falls; 20-21,
cause it produces so much?	vicinity of Tucumcari, and a wide dis-	three of which-Avanti, Giuntizia and	It's my purty button, repres		Butte; 22-23, Spokane; 24-25, Seattle;
America, America, open your eyes and		the new Turin paper-are the prop-	Tommy, Junny Jones wears a race	tain a firm and dignined position de-	26-27, Vancouver, B. C.; 28-29, Port-
800	which is in the nature of a public ca-	erty of the party. The Denmark so-	button, and Charlie Smith a Bryan	cause the very injustice of his attack.	land; October 1-2, Sacramento; 3-4,
If you only vote right you settle the		cialists recently sent \$8,000 to their	button, and I've got a right to wear a	tions are its own best answer.	Oakland; 5-6, San Francisco; 8-9, San
strife for justice and equality.	and rendering 90 per cent of the popu-	Russian comrades to help them in	Debs button.		Diego; 10-11. Los Angeles; 13-14. El
THE CONTRACTOR AND THE RECEIPTING	lation destitute—thousands being	their battle for freedom. The fact	The two boys named were in the		Paso; 16-17, Dallas; 18-19, Fort
America, America, open your eyes and	compelled to leave their homes and	that a socialist paper has been started	crowd and emblems on their coats	itemized statement, copy enclosed, of	Worth: 20-21, Oklahoma City: 22-23,
see,	homesteads. All citizens in the dis-	at Rakjavik shows that the movement	verified Tommy's words.	all money received for the Red Spe-	Guthrie; 24-25, Arkansas City; 26-27,
That your truest patriots are sent to		is making headway in Iceland.	A good many thoughts went through	cial, up to, and including, August 15,	Kansas City; 28-29, St. Louis.
jall for teaching true LIBERTY.	ernment for immediate aid. The com-	The return of Prime Minister As-	Miss Holman's mind. She recognized	1908, and a further report, bringing	
-R. W. JONES.	rades request that our membership	quith from Scotland and his confer-	the logic of the boy's assumption that	the account to the close of the month,	SOCIALIST TRAIN ON ITS WAY
Kendall, Mont.	join in their efforts by writing to the	ence with Sir Henry Grey, secretary of	his party was as much to him as any	Other allegations made in the Com-	The Red Special a reality, with Eu-
	authorities at Washington, calling	foreign affairs, are connected with the	other boy's.		gene Debs aboard, thundered out of
FIELD WORK.	their attention to the situation and	relations of Sir Edward Grey and Mr.		pers' editorial will be taken up at an early date. These facts will make	the La Salle street station at 9:10
Eugene V. Debs.	requesting that aid be granted.	Haldane, the secretary of war, with	and build to roundy.		o'clock in the morning to spread the
Missoula, Thursday, Sept. 17; ar-		some of the more socialistic members	one had but a vague idea nersen	and the second sec	message of socialism to the Pacific
rive 3:20 p. m., depart 3:45 p. m.	J. F. Mabie.	of the cabinet which have been strain-	and supposed the boy could not an-	JOHN WORK.	coast. As the train pulled out Ste-
Butte, Thursday, September 17; ar-	Carbon county to Sept. 18	ed for some time. The foreign secre-	"It means that instead of my father		phen Reynolds stepped to the car
rive 7:40 p. m., depart 11:30 p. m.	and the second se	tary is firmly opposed to the social	working for the father of Jim Jones		platform and threw red roses into the
Billings, Friday, September 18; ar-	Arthur Morrow Lewis.	reform program at the expense of	to make him rich while we're poor	Committee.	cheering crowd. Cheer after cheer
rive 9 a. m., depart 9:30 a. m.	Billings	the army and navy, which some of	and my sister working in the laundry	J. MAHLON BARNES.	beat against the roof of the depot as
Sheridan, Wyo., Friday, Sept. 18;	Great Falls September 18-19	his colleagues are advocating. The in-	for Charlie Smith's father, that all the	National Secretary.	the Red Special left the station.
arrive 2:45 p. m., depart 3:45 p. m.	ButteSeptember 20-21		people will work together and they'll		Cheering throngs had accompanied
and the second sec	and the second	of foreign affairs, which Sir Edward		LEWIS TO TOUR FOR THE DAILY	Debs to the station and the Red Spe-
Geo. R. Kirkpatrick.	T. J. Lewis in Idaho.	regards as an unjustifiable interfer-	have a chance to go to college as well		cial band played all along the line of
HelenaSept. 22		ence, has brought the friction to a	as the rich boys."	Garrick Lecturer Scheduled to Speak	march from the party headquarters,
Butte	AcequianSept. 4	climax.	The big bell rang and the children		at 180 Washington street, to the sta-
Lewistown	Bolse CitySept.6-7		took their seats.	A boom for The Daily Socialist	tion. The tones of the "Marsellaise"
Kendall	EmmettSept. 8	In France, Belgium and Germany	Miss Holman had decided to consult	throughout the western states is	thundered forth as the crowd surged
BeltSept. 19 Great Falls (two dates)Sept. 20-21	MidvaleSept. 9	the miners are also foremost in the	the school board about the strange	planned in the form of a lecture tour	into the railroad station.
Great Falls (two dates)	CambridgeSept. 10	van of labour representation; and in		which A. M. Lewis intends to make,	Those accompanying Debs are A. M.
John Collins.	En route	Australia it is the mining centers	Brown.	visiting twenty-five of the leading	Simons, Chicago; Stephen Reynolds,
LimaOctober 2	Pocatello	which contribute the chief labor	Now, as it happened in Tommy's	western cities. From this tour he ex-	Terre Haute; John G. Chase, Haver-
DillonOctober 3	Idaho FallsSept. 14-15	strength of the state and common-	town, the socialists had elected Mr.	pects to draw new sinews of war for	hill, Mass.; Jas. H. Brower, Elgin,
Butte October 4	Kilgore	wealth legislatures. We lift our caps	Brown on the school board.	the paper to use during the campaign.	candidate for governor of Illinois,
Livingston	Dell	to the coal miners, and as for the gold	the second	The letter, in which he sets forth his	who will be with the party till the
Bridger October 6	DillonSept. 19		heard the story, he smiled, a wise so-		state line is reached; A. H. Floaten
Carbon countyOctober 7-10	Mullan		cialist smile, and said. "Make no dis-		of Denver, in charge of the literature, assisted by John Hanson of Chicago;
and the second se	BurkeSept. 24		criminations in repard to politics, Miss		W. W. Buchanan of San Antonio.
Sel FieldmanOctober	WallaceSept. 25		Holman. Teach the boys and girls		Tex.; Lewis Kewan of Nevada; Otto
Lewis J. Duncan.	HarrisonSept. 26		too, to study whatever they stand for.		McFeeley, publicity director, and
MissoulaSept. 14	Coeur d'AlentSept. 27		Teach them to argue without becom-		Charles Lapworth, correspondent for
DarbySept. 15	RathdrumSept. 28	pinch.		making these meetings a success.	European socialist press.
HamiltonSept. 16	Spirit LakeSept. 29		rights of others.	They will be held for the benefit of	
Red SpecialSept. 17	Laclede			The Chicago Daily Socialist, and the total receipts for the twenty-five cities	The Chicago Daily Socialist will be
the second secon		of New Zealand is yet another proof			on sale at 527 W. Broadway, Butte,
A. W. Harrack.		that coal miners all the world over		"Look up the secretary of the so-	Mont. Prices for delivery per month
Cascade county to	A DESCRIPTION OF A	are, so to speak, the salt of the so-			on application.
Havre	and the second se	cialist and trade union movement. In this country the colliers were the first		mation about the hall and advertising	
Fort Benton	a series and a series of the series of the series of the series of the	body of organized workmen to re-		matter for distribution. There will be	In Holland a Dutch Men's league to
Livingston	The T T seeds in Months and	solve upon electing and paying for la-		two nights in each town, subject the	help secure suffrage for Holland wo-
BozemanSept. 17		bor representatives. As far back as		first night, 'Socialism and Science,'	men is being formed. The first of
D. Burgess.		1875 they returned the late Mr. Alex-			such leagues was organized in Eng-
Carbon county to			ist on the town school boardIda		land. The Lutheran church in Hol-
			Crouch-Hazlett in Little Socialist Mag-		land has given votes to the women
	St. RegisSept. 22		azine.	theater courses, but given a special	
			CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF		



man gets to work.

each.

stamps.

assessments.

for linotype.

two good speeches here Friday and me if we would double that."

Donations from Belt for special assessment: Morris Gahan, 50; A. Fisher, 50; Victor Fisher, 50; J. 50; C. J. Croft, 50; W. Hunter, 25; Fred Albots, 20; H. P. Nevills, 50; John Tonder, 59; Carl Long, 50.

Comrade Cruse sends in \$6 for due stamps for Bozeman. He says: "We are doing a landoffice business in our this young man to the socialist cause. to the News, and he has his mother last week. to support and is trying to send him-

self through school.

bers are old standbys and we are going to make things move. Fraternally yours. ALEX R. RHONE. Secretary.

Great Falls is said to have one of the strongest locals in the state, therelocal." Few realize the devotion of fore it was something of a disappointment to me to see but a small at-He has sent us another \$100 as a loan | tendance at the Phelps Stokes lectures.

"Oh, yes," one ventured in explanation, "there is plenty of socialist sen-



spends it all is poorer than the man who makes \$1,000 a year and saves \$100.

It isn't what YOU earn, its what your SAVINGS earn that determines your business future.

### WE PAY 4 PER CENT

on money deposited in our savings department or on time certificates of deposit.

UNION BANK & TRUST CO. HELENA, MONT.

herewith and sincere thanks for your contribution to the fund for the socialist special.

The national executive committee has ordered the special forward, but only over half the trip, that is, the western part. You have helped to start it, may I ask that you assist further in awakening others to this great opportunity. It must complete the trip. It must go till election day. Excuse brief acknowledgment. The

fight goes gloriously on. Fraternally J. MAHLON BARNES, National Secretary.

One item in your paper pleases me very much, and that is the way the sociolists are coming to the front in Cuba and that they have a paper in the Spanish language. That will give us who live in New Mexico, Arizona, southern California, southern Colorado and Nevada and El Paso, Tex., and other places a chance to do propaganda work among the Mexicans with this Cuban paper until such time as we can raise up Spanish socialist papers to fill the requirements. Also, we may get the help of the Cuban organizer for the same purpose.

My home being in New Mexico, I have an opportunity to see what is needed to organize the American Mexicans. Most all of them only use the Spanish language and do not know much, or care much for the English language. As they form a large part of the population I am in for seeing what can be done with the problem of organizing them most thoroughlysay like Oklahoma. Your fraternally, H. E. FARNSWORTH.

FRED CHUNING, Sec'y. Missoula County Central Committee. Missoula, Mont., Sept. 5.

wining the second states the second states the second states and show the second states and stat OT 'EM ON THE RUN

19 North Park Ave., Helena, Mont

Montana News

Wholesale merchants and manufacturers selling direct to consumers and there by saving to the purchaser the profits of the middleman and the wonderful expense of advertising can give to their customers

### A HIGH GRADE CLASS OF GOODS AT LOWER PRICES

than others charge for inferior goods. Satisfaction is guaranteed with every purchase. The pure food law has forced hundreds of dealers in trash out of business. The Meldrum goods have not been affected by it, as their goods are exactly as represented

# = 30 Per cent Cheaper = Than Any Other Dealer

Prove the truth of this. We sell anything and everything from a sewing machine needle to a threshing machine, and our goods are all of the same high grade as our groceries and all bear the same guarantee.

Money cheerfully refunded on any soods not satisfatory

William L. Cragg

Lewistown, Montana

REPRESENTING GEO. MELDRUM & CO. OF CHICAGO

and the second s